
Regular Council Meeting Agenda October 22, 2024, 6:30pm 

 
AGENDA 

Bentley Town Council  
Tuesday October 22, 2024 

6:30pm Regular Meeting of Council 
 

Regular council meeting will be followed by the Town of Bentley Organizational Meeting 
approximately 7:30pm 

 
1. Call To Order 

 
 

2. Indigenous Acknowledgement 
 
“We acknowledge that we are meeting on Treaty 6 Territory and Home of Metis 
Nation Region 3, on land that is part of a historic agreement involving mutuality 
and respect. We recognize all the many First Nations, Metis, Inuit, and non-First 
Nations whose footsteps have marked these lands.” 

 
 

3. Amendments & Acceptance of Agenda 
 
 

4. Adoption of Previous Minutes:  
 

a) Regular Meeting of Council October 8, 2024 
 
 

5. Financial: 
 

a) Prepaid Cheque Listing – Cheques No. 20240778 to 20240827 
 
 

6. New Business 
 

a) Resident Letter of Concern – Herbacide Spraying 
 

b) Bylaw 251-2024 – Bylaw to establish $500,000 Line of Credit for 3 years for 
operating costs 

 
c) Effluent Access Agreement – Baytex Energy Ltd. 

 
 

7. Correspondence 
 

a) Lacombe County Council Highlights October 10, 2024 
b) ATCO Gas – Franchise Agreement – Notice of Application to be filed with 

Alberta Utilities Corporation 



Regular Council Meeting Agenda October 22, 2024, 6:30pm 

8. Other Business 
 
 None 
 
 

9. Adjournment       



Regular Council Meeting Minutes October 8, 2024  

 

Minutes of the Regular of the Council of the Town of Bentley 
October 8, 2024 

 
 
Date and Place  Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Council of the Town of Bentley 

held Tuesday, October 8, 2024, at 6:30 p.m., in the Bentley Municipal Office  
 

In Attendance Mayor Greg Rathjen 
Deputy Mayor Eastman 

   Councillor Valiquette 
   Councillor Hansen 
   Councillor Grimsdale 
   CAO, Marc Fortais 
 
Call to Order  Mayor Rathjen called the regular council meeting to order at 6:30pm 
 
Indigenous  
Acknowledgement “We acknowledge that we are meeting on Treaty 6 Territory and 

Home of Metis Nation Region 3, on land that is part of a historic agreement 
involving mutuality and respect. We recognize all the many First Nations, 
Metis, Inuit, and non-First Nations whose footsteps have marked these 
lands.” 

Read by Mayor Rathjen 
 

Agenda 

Motion 182/2024 Moved by Deputy Mayor Eastman, “THAT the agenda 
of the October 8, 2024, regular meeting of council be amended to include an 
item to discuss document shredding as other business.” 

        Carried 

 

Motion 183/2024 Moved by Councillor Hansen, “THAT the amended 
agenda of the October 8, 2024, regular meeting of council be accepted.” 

        Carried 

 
Previous Minutes   

Motion 184/2024 Moved by Deputy Mayor Eastman “THAT the minutes 
of the September 24, 2024, Regular Meeting of Council be accepted.” 
 
        Carried 
 

 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes October 8, 2024  

Financial  
a) Prepaid Cheque Listing – Cheques No. 20240744 to 20240777 

Motion 185/2024 Moved by Councillor Hansen, “THAT Cheques No. 
20240744 to 20240777 be received for information.” 

           Carried 

New Business 

a) Public Works Update 3rd Quarter 
 

Motion 186/2024 Moved by Councillor Grimsdale, “THAT the public 
works 3rd quarter report, presented by the Public Works Foreman, Darren 
Jensen, be accepted as information.” 

        Carried 

 

b) Parks and Safety Update 3rd Quarter 

Motion 187/2024 Moved by Councillor Valiquette, “THAT the Parks and 
Safety update, presented by the Parks Supervisor/Safety Officer, Chris 
Loov, be accepted as information.” 

        Carried 

 

c) ATCO Franchise Fees 

Motion 188/2024 Moved by Councillor Valiquette, “THAT Mayor and 
Council set the natural gas distribution system franchise fee percentage for 
the 2024 November deadline related to the Franchise Fee Collected in the 
2025 year at 12%.” 

        Carried 

 

d) Fortis Franchise Fee 

Motion 189/2024 Moved by Councillor Grimsdale, “THAT Mayor and 
Council set the electrical distribution system franchise fee percentage for the 
2024 November deadline related to the Franchise Fee Collected in 2025 at 
10%.” 

        Carried 

 

 

 

 

 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes October 8, 2024  

Correspondence 

a) Lacombe County Council Highlights September 26, 2024 
b) Public Information Session Land Use Bylaw Amendments – October 9, 

2024, from 6pm to 8pm 
c) Annual Yard Waste Clean up – Friday October 18, 2024 

 

Motion 190/2024 Moved by Deputy Mayor Eastman, “THAT 
correspondence item a to c be accepted as information.” 

        Carried 

 

Other Business  

a) Shredding services in the community 

A question was asked by a member of the community to Deputy Mayor 
Eastman, if the Town of Bentley would consider providing a service to offer 
personal document shredding a couple times a year. 

This item was briefly discussed amongst members of council; however, no 
motion was made to consider it, due to the additional cost and burden that 
would be placed on local taxpayers, which would only potentially be a 
benefit for a few. It was felt that if people wanted to shred documents, they 
could go to service centres that offer that type of service and pay for it.  

 

Council Reports 

a) Mayor Greg Rathjen 
b) Deputy Mayor Eastman 
c) Councillor Hansen 
d) Councillor Grimsdale 
e) Councillor Valiquette 

Motion 191/2024 Moved by Councillor Valiquette, “THAT the September 
Council Reports be accepted as information.” 

        Carried 

 

Adjournment 

Mayor Rathjen adjourned the meeting at 7:47pm 

        

  
_________________________    _________________________ 

Mayor Greg Rathjen      CAO Marc Fortais 







October 22, 2024, Council Agenda             New Business – Herbicide Application in Municipal Park – Citizen Concern 

 
 
 

 
Agenda Date:  October 22, 2024 
      
Agenda Item:  New Business: 

Herbicide Application in Municipal Parks – Citizen Concern 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
THAT Mayor and Council provide administration with additional direction. 
 
 
SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND 
 
On October 9, 2024, the Town of Bentley had our contractor, “Earth Smart,” apply herbicide in the 
downtown park for the control of broadleaf weeds. This is typically part of our annual process each 
year and we have been doing so for many years. This process includes downtown park, ballfields, 
campground, around the arena, stockpile yard, around the lagoons and out by 50th street south and 
the connector road by the transfer site.  
 
The purpose of this spraying program is to control broadleaf weeds as well as weeds such as 
scentless chamomile and tansy near the transfer site. By implementing a regular spraying program, 
we do not lose control of wees within our parks and other greenspace areas.  
 
The product used to spray the parks is called Nufarm Solution (Trilliion) and I have attached the data 
sheet for the spray (Attachment #1). The key active ingredient in the spray is 2, 4-D, which meets 
Canada’s health and safety standards, for additional information regarding 2, 4-D, please go to the 
following website link: https://www.canada.ca/en/health-canada/services/consumer-product-
safety/pesticides-pest-management/public/protecting-your-health-environment/questions-answers-
final-decision-evaluation-2-4-d.html 
 
 To date it has not been found to be cancerous, drift from the spray is generally 100 – 1000 times less 
concentrated than what applicators are exposed to. The chemical is also not residual and does not 
stay in the environment. You can hardly detect it within 24 hours of application. The information sheet 
attached indicates staying off the lawn until it dries, which on a normal day is 2 to 3 hours.  
 
In addition, there is signage placed in the area of spraying, however the signage is small and previous 
practice has been no formal notice to the public through social media or on the town website 
regarding the spraying taking place. Therefore, we can probably do a better job of informing the public 
when these activities are taking place.  
 
 

https://www.canada.ca/en/health-canada/services/consumer-product-safety/pesticides-pest-management/public/protecting-your-health-environment/questions-answers-final-decision-evaluation-2-4-d.html
https://www.canada.ca/en/health-canada/services/consumer-product-safety/pesticides-pest-management/public/protecting-your-health-environment/questions-answers-final-decision-evaluation-2-4-d.html
https://www.canada.ca/en/health-canada/services/consumer-product-safety/pesticides-pest-management/public/protecting-your-health-environment/questions-answers-final-decision-evaluation-2-4-d.html


October 22, 2024, Council Agenda             New Business – Herbicide Application in Municipal Park – Citizen Concern 

On the same day that the spraying occurred the Town of Bentley received a concern from a local 
resident regarding the spraying and they asked that the Town consider other methods of addressing 
weed control. Please see the attached redacted letter (Attachment #2). 
 
 
CURRENT STATUS 
 
In follow up to the concern, we have brought this information to the attention of Mayor and Council. In 
addition, we had our Parks Supervisor/Safety Officer follow up with Alberta Environment as well as 
the resident. As indicated by the resident, several other municipalities including Edmonton have 
switched to a more expensive but less toxic form of weed control. Our staff suggested that the 
resident send any additional information that they may have on alternative products and in addition he 
will conduct his own research over the winter.  
 
Administration also indicated to the resident, that should we choose to continue to utilize the current 
method, that we could look at spraying more active parks every 2nd or 3rd year on an as needed basis 
and that we could put larger more prevalent signage out and advertise better regarding the spraying. 
 
 
BUDGET AND FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
$3,500 to $4,000 per year for one spraying in the fall  
 

 
ALTERNATIVES 

 
• Continue to use the existing herbicide as a cost-effective means of controlling broad leaf 

weeds. 
 

• Conduct more research regarding alternative weed control, which may be just as effective at 
controlling weeds and offer a more natural solution but may come at an additional cost.  
 

• Spray targeted areas are less frequently based on specific need rather than conducting 
preventive spraying. 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

1. Data Sheet Nufarm-Trillion 
2. Resident Letter of Concern – Herbacide Spraying (Redacted) 

 
        _________________________________ 
        Marc Fortais, CAO    



BENEFITS
•    Consistent broad-spectrum control of tough annual and 

perennial turf weeds

•  Three-way active ingredient formulation provides strong 
take-down of the toughest weeds

• Re-entry permitted once spray has thoroughly dried

• Weed control formulated specifically for turfgrass

• Excellent systemic control of emerged weeds

• Non-residual control leaves options open

• Convenient packaging options

PERFORMANCE TIPS
•  For best results apply when weeds are growing quickly

•  If weed populations do not warrant a broadcast 
application, consider spot treatments that target only 
weedy areas

•  Grass seed can be safely sown 1 to 2 weeks after 
application at recommended rate

• Do not water turf within 24 hours of application

•  Do not apply to newly seeded lawns until after third 
mowing

TIMING
•  May and early June, and late August and September

•  Apply when weeds are actively growing and not  
under stress

>> SELECTIVE HERBICIDE

PCP NO. 27972 WSSA GROUP 4

ACTIVE INGR.  2,4-D (31.0%), mecoprop-p (17.0%), 
dicamba (4.0%)

FORMULATION liquid

CHEM. FAMILY phenoxy-carboxylic acid

PACKAGE SIZE  2 x 10 L jug  
one jug treats 4.5 acres (at 5.5 L/ha)

RAINFAST   do not spray if rain is forecast

APPLICATION / SEASON  up to two broadcast 
applications

SURFACTANT NEEDED no

     

 CHALLENGE
  Sod farms, golf courses and other turf growers struggle to find the right 

solution to tackle tough weed problems. Too many brands and products 
fall short of providing a winning combination of effective weed control at 
a great price.

 NUFARM SOLUTION
  Trillion® turf herbicide delivers the hard-hitting answer to tough turf weeds 

including dandelion, chickweed, plantain and creeping Charlie. The 
familiar Group 4 formulation provides the performance and price you 
need in easy-to-handle jugs or special order totes.

 REGISTERED USES
   Turfgrass including golf courses, sod farms, and municipal, industrial and 

residential turf

   1.800.868.5444 • nufarm.ca 
For specific application rates, directions, mixing instructions and precautions, read the product label.  
Please visit www.nufarm.ca to download a full label.

©2019 Nufarm.  Trillion® is a registered trademark of Nufarm Agriculture Inc.  18-CATO-0008-EN-B

TRILLION®

WEEDS CONTROLLED APPLICATION RATES AND NOTES

Bedstraw

TURF (OTHER THAN BENTGRASS):  
On established turf, apply at the 

rate of 60 mL per 100 m2 in 10 L  
of water. 

For larger areas apply at the rate of 
5.5 L per hectare in 300 L of water.

FOR BENTGRASS: 
Apply at a half rate –  

30 mL per 100 m2 in May or late 
August and September.  

Use 20 L of water per 100 m2. 

Slight yellowing will occur but will 
disappear after about 1 week. 

Do not overdose bentgrass as 
damage or kill may occur. Make 
sure correct rate is applied to the 

whole area treated. 

When spraying bentgrass use 
only a one nozzle sprayer. Make 
sure spray application does not 

overlap or excess material will be 
applied to overlapped areas and 

damage is more likely to occur.

Black medic (yellow clover)

Buttercup

Chickweed

Clover

Daisy species (English and ground)

Dandelion

Devil’s paint brush

Ground ivy (creeping Charlie)

Heal-all

Ironweed

Knotweed

Plantain

Poison ivy

Ragweed

Shepherd’s-purse

EFFECTIVE, ECONOMICAL WEED CONTROL FOR TURF,  
INCLUDING GOLF COURSES AND SOD FARMS.

















October 22, 2024,              Bylaw 251-2024 – A bylaw to establish $500,000 Line of Credit for 3 years for operating costs 

 
 
Agenda Date:  October 22, 2024 
      
Agenda Item:  New Business: 

Bylaw 251-2024 – Bylaw to establish $500,000 Line of Credit for 3 years 
operating costs. 

 
 
LEGISLATIVE REQUIREMENTS 
 
WHEREAS pursuant to Section 256 of the Municipal Government Act, RSA 2000, M-26 as amended, 
provides for a Municipality to borrow for the purposes of financing operating expenditures, 
 
AND WHEREAS, the line of credit being established at $500,000, does not exceed the amount the 
Town of Bentley estimates will be raised in taxes in the year the borrowing is made,  
 
AND WHEREAS, a borrowing bylaw that authorizes the borrowing for operating expenditures, does 
not have to be advertised if the term of the borrowing does not exceed 3 years. 
 
NOW THEREFORE the Council of the Town of Bentley, in the Province of Alberta, duly assembled, 
hereby enacts as follows: 
 

Servus Credit Union Ltd. Borrowing Resolution, establishing a line of credit of $500,000, for a 
term of 3 years from the date of approval of this bylaw, a copy of which is attached is hereby 
approved and the Mayor and chief Administrative Officer are hereby authorized to execute the 
said Resolution for an on behalf of the Town of Bentley.  
 
This Bylaw hereby repeals and replaces Bylaw 192/2017 - A Bylaw to establish a $500,000 line 
of Credit with Servus Credit Union. 

 
 
SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND 
 
The Town of Bentley has an existing borrowing bylaw 192/2017 (Attachment #1), however this bylaw 
is more than 3 years old. Technically the bylaw should have been re-approved in 2020 and again in 
2023, however due to the transition of CAO’s this item was missed. Since that time there has not been 
a need to utilize the short-term borrowing from the line of credit as we have tightly managed the Town’s 
finances.  
 
It is, however, fiscally responsible to ensure that the town has the ability to access funds if an 
emergency arises. Therefore, it is important to ensure that the short-term borrowing provisions are in 
place and are legitimized through the current passing of a bylaw.  
 
 
 
 



October 22, 2024,              Bylaw 251-2024 – A bylaw to establish $500,000 Line of Credit for 3 years for operating costs 

 
CURRENT STATUS 
 
Administration does not currently have any intention of accessing line of credit funds in the current 
year. However, we have prepared the attached bylaw #251/2024 (Attachment #2) to ensure that such 
a facility exists in the event of an emergency. Given council’s role as an approving authority in the 
municipality for expenditures and also our established signing protocol, requiring Mayor or Deputy 
Mayor and CAO or Administrative Assistant signatures, there would not be a situation where funds 
would be accessed without council’s knowledge and approval.  
 
 
BUDGET AND FINANCIAL 
 
Establishing a $500,000 Line of Credit to be used only when and if necessary for emergencies 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
THAT Bylaw 251/2024 to establish a $500,000 Line of Credit at Servus Credit Union be given 1st 
reading this 22nd  day of October 2024; AND 
 
THAT Bylaw 251/2024 to establish a $500,000 Line of Credit at Servus Credit Union be given 2nd 
reading this 22nd day of October 2024; AND 
 
THAT Bylaw 251/2024 to establish a $500,000 Line of Credit at Servus Credit Union be considered for 
3rd and final reading this 22nd day of October 2024; AND 
 
THAT Bylaw 251/2024 to establish a $500,000 Line of Credit at Servus Credit Union be given a third 
and final reading this 22nd day of October 2024. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

1) Bylaw 192/2017 Bylaw to establish a line of credit of $500,000 
2) Bylaw 251/2024 bylaw to establish a $500,000 line of credit for 3 years for operating costs 

 
 
 
 
        _________________________________ 
        Marc Fortais, CAO    







 
BYLAW 251/2024 

Shor Term Borrowing Bylaw 
To Establish $500,000 Line of Credit at Servus Credit Union 

 
BEING A BYLAW OF THE TOWN OF BENTLEY, IN THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA, 
TO ESTABLISH A LINE OF CREDIT WITH THE SERVUS CREDIT UNION LTD, 
BENTLEY ALBERTA BRANCH. 

 

WHEREAS pursuant to Section 256 of the Municipal Government Act, RSA 2000, M-26 as 
amended, provides for a Municipality to borrow for the purposes of financing operating 
expenditures, 

AND WHEREAS, the line of credit being established at $500,000, does not exceed the amount 
the Town of Bentley estimates will be raised in taxes in the year the borrowing is made,  

AND WHEREAS, a borrowing bylaw that authorizes the borrowing for operating expenditures, 
does not have to be advertised if the term of the borrowing does not exceed 3 years. 

NOW THEREFORE the Council of the Town of Bentley, in the Province of Alberta, duly 
assembled, hereby enacts as follows: 

Servus Credit Union Ltd. Borrowing Resolution, establishing a line of credit of $500,000, 
for a term of 3 years from the date of approval of this bylaw, a copy of which is attached 
is hereby approved and the Mayor and chief Administrative Officer are hereby authorized 
to execute the said Resolution for an on behalf of the Town of Bentley.  

This Bylaw hereby repeals and replaces Bylaw 192/2017 - A Bylaw to establish a 
$500,000 line of Credit with Servus Credit Union. 

 

  Read a First Time in Council this _____ day of _______________, 2024. 

 

  Read a Second Time in Council this _____ day of _______________, 2024. 

 

  Read a Third Time in Council this _____ day of _______________, 2024. 

TOWN OF BENTLEY 
____________________________________ 
MAYOR 
 
____________________________________ 
CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 



 
BORROWING RESOLUTION      By-law No. 251/2024 
  

TOWN OF BENTLEY 
Box 179 

Bentley, AB  T0C 0J0 
 

WHEREAS, it is necessary for the purposes of the Town of Bentley (the Town), from time to time, to borrow 
money from the Servus Credit Union Ltd. (the “Credit Union”). 
 
AND WHEREAS, the Credit Union may from time-to-time request security over certain property, assets and 
undertakings of the Town  in order to secure its indebtedness and obligations to the Credit Union. 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Council of the Town of Bentley that; 
 

1. The Town be and is hereby authorized from time to time to borrow in the aggregate up to the sum 
of $500,000.00 from the Credit Union (including without limitation through the issuance of bills or 
exchange drawn by the Town and accepted by the Credit Union) upon the credit of the Town. 

 
2. Any promissory notes, bills of exchange or other negotiable paper (including renewals thereof in 

whole or in part) signed on behalf of the Town by the Authorized Signed Authorities of the Town 
and granted to or accepted by the Credit Union for monies borrowed from it and for interest 
thereon shall be binding upon the Town. 
 

3. The Town may from time to time grant securities by way of mortgage, debentures, hypothecation, 
pledge, assignment or otherwise covering all or any of the property and assets of the Town 
present and future as security for all or any monies borrowed by or due from the Town to the 
Credit Union, and any such mortgage, debenture, hypothecation, pledge, assignment or other 
security shall be valid and binding upon the Town when signed by the Authorized Signing 
Authorities. 
 

4. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Town may specifically grant and pledge to the 
Credit Union as security for its obligations and indebtedness such security to be in the form 
acceptable to the Credit Union and the Authorized Signing Authorities of the Town. 
 

5. That all contracts, deeds, grants, assurances and documents, including any and all amendments, 
renewals and extensions thereto, reasonably required by the Credit Union or its counsel for all or 
any of the purposes aforesaid shall be executed and carried into effect by the Authorized Signing 
Authorities of the Town and when necessary, the seal of the Town may be affixed thereto. 
 

6.  “Authorized Signing Authorities” means those signing authorities of the Town who are authorized 
on behalf of the Town to sign, endorse, make, draw and/or accept any cheques, promissory 
notes, bills of exchange or other negotiable instruments, any orders for the payment of money, 
contracts for letters of credit or forward exchange and generally all instruments or documents for 
the purpose of binding or obligating the Town in any way in connection with its accounts(s) and 
transactions with the Credit Union, whether or not an overdraft is hereby created, in accordance 
with their authorization.  

 
7. The Term of this Borrowing Bylaw shall be for 3 years from the date of approval of the bylaw.  

 
I certify that the foregoing is a true copy of the resolution duly passed by the Council of the Town of 
Bentley under By-law No. 251/2024 on the _____day of _____2024 and is in full force and effect at date 
hereof in accordance with its terms.  
 
AS WITNESS, the seal of the Town of Bentley, this _____ day of _____, 2024.  
 
 
        __________________________________ 
        Mayor 
 
      
        __________________________________ 
        Chief Administrative Officer 
 



October 22, 2024, Council Agenda             New Business – Effluent Access Agreement – Baytex Energy Ltd 

 
 
 

 
Agenda Date:  October 22, 2024 
      
Agenda Item:  New Business: 

Effluent Access Agreement from Lagoons – Baytex Energy Ltd 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
THAT Mayor and Council authorize the Chief Administrative Officer, Marc Fortais to negotiate a 
contract with Baytex Energy for access to treated effluent from the wastewater treatment lagoons 
owned by the Town of Bentley.  
 
 
SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND 
 
Public Works foreman, Darren Jensen, was contacted by representatives of Alberta Environment, to 
advise that due to the drought conditions in Alberta, they preferred if the Town of Bentely would hold 
off on discharging treated effluent from our lagoons into the Blindman River, until the spring.  
 
Typically, each year a release is done in October to ensure that our lagoons levels are maintained to 
an operational standard. All releases are done in compliance with the code of practice for wastewater 
systems. In addition, the town tests wastewater quality prior to release and we are always well within 
acceptable limits prior to a release. On August 21, 2024, we received the attached letter (Attachment 
#1) from Alberta Environment, regarding monitoring and additional testing, however we normally meet 
these requirements each year as we already undertake such testing prior to release.  
 
 
CURRENT STATUS 
 
The Alberta Environment representative, who we followed up with,  recommended that we connect 
with Baytex Energy to inquire about them purchasing our treated effluent for use in their drilling 
operations. It was also confirmed that Baytex has contracts with other municipalities in the area, 
including Rimbey. I spoke directly with the CAO of Rimbey, regarding their contract arrangement with 
Baytex and they are extremely happy with their professionalism and procedures regarding the access 
to treated effluent.  
 
The Agreement is from when it is executed this year to December 31, 2025, and will continue on a 
year-to-year basis thereafter. The Town of Bentley would grant Baytex a first access to a minimum of 
5000m3 and up to a maximum of 120,000 m3 of treated effluent each year. Baytex shall notify the 
Town of Bentley by December 1st of each year of its intention to access up to 120,000m3 of treated 
effluent. If Baytex does not need the effluent and notifies us of this, they will still pay the minimum  
 



October 22, 2024, Council Agenda             New Business – Effluent Access Agreement – Baytex Energy Ltd 

 
$1.00 per cube for the 5000m3, and we would have the right to sell the treated effluent to another 
company.  
 
All safety protocol will be followed when accessing effluent, with backflow prevention and ensuring 
that equipment has been flushed and cleaned prior to placing any equipment into our lagoons. In 
addition, Baytex Energy must meet Alberta Environment guidelines regarding their access and 
storage and use of our treated effluent.  
 
There is minimal risk for allowing the access and all proper procedures will be followed in accordance 
with the code of practice for wastewater system. In addition, the Town of Bentley receives the 
potential benefit of additional funds to support long-term capital projects related to the wastewater 
system.  
 
It is administrations recommendation to proceed with a contract with Baytex Energy Ltd for the right of 
first refusal to access treated effluent.  
 
 
BUDGET AND FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
$1.00 per cubic metre accessed between 5000m3 and 120,000m3 per year. 
Notification by December 1 of each year 
 

 
ALTERNATIVES 

 
• Continue to release into the Blindman River each year, when authorized to do so by Alberta 

Environment with no financial benefit to the Town. 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

1. Monitoring Letter Wastewater Facilities – Alberta Environment 
 
        _________________________________ 
        Marc Fortais, CAO    







 
HIGHLIGHTS OF THE REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

October 10, 2024 
  
 
PLANNING DEPARTMENT UPDATE 
Council received an update regarding the current activities and initiatives of the Planning Department. 
 
LACOMBE COUNTY BUSINESS RECOGNITION PROGRAM 
The Lacombe County Business Recognition Program will be implemented as a pilot program for a two-
year period beginning January 1, 2025. The program will celebrate new business start-ups and honour 
businesses that have reached significant years-in-business milestones.  The program's outcomes and 
effectiveness will be reviewed at the end of the pilot period. 
 
LACOME COUNTY PARTICIPATION IN CENTRAL ALBERTA TOURISM ALLIANCE 
The matter of Lacombe County’s participation as a member of the Central Alberta Tourism Alliance was 
deferred to a future Council meeting.   
 
POLICY AD(33) ENVIRONMENTAL COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT 
Updated Policy AD(33) Environmental Community Engagement was approved as presented. 
 
PARKLAND REGIONAL LIBRARY – PROPOSED 2025 BUDGET 
The Parkland Regional Library Proposed 2025 Budget was approved as presented. 
 
REQUEST FOR CLOSURE OF STATUTORY ROAD ALLOWANCE 
Subsequent to a request by a Lacombe County property owner to close a portion of an undeveloped 
road allowance, (+/- 1.89 acres) for consolidation with Lot 2 Block 1 Plan 1021255 (Pt. NE-19-38-24-
W4M), Council gave first reading to Bylaw No. 1421/24.  A Public Hearing for Bylaw No. 1421/24 will be 
held on November 28, 2024 commencing at 9:00 a.m. 
 
OPERATIONS POLICY REVIEW 
Rescindment of Policy OP(10) Pipeline Road Crossings, and updates to policies OP(14) Sale of Road 
Allowances, OP(33) Clean Up Program and OP(35) Individual Roadside Mailboxes, received Council 
approval. 
 
LACOMBE COUNTY AND TOWN OF BLACKFALDS FIRE SERVICES AGREEMENT 
Council approved the Town of Blackfalds/Lacombe County Fire Services Agreement as presented.  
Under the proposed agreement, the County agrees to purchase 50% of the Town of Blackfalds Fire 
Hall at a cost of $1,370,620.  As per the agreement, the Town is responsible for providing all fire-
fighting apparatus and equipment.  As such, the Town will be purchasing the County’s fire-fighting 
apparatus and equipment at a cost of $195,115. 
 
BYLAW NO. 1420/24 LAND USE BYLAW AMENDMENT REQUEST 
Bylaw No. 1420/24, a bylaw of Lacombe County to amend the County’s Land Use Bylaw Agricultural ‘A’ 
District by adding the discretionary use “Recovery Centre” on N ½ 22-41-23-W4M.  A public hearing for 
Bylaw No. 1420/24 will be held on November 18, 2024 at 7:00 p.m. 
 
PARKLAND REGIONAL LIBRARY PRESENTATION 
Representatives of Parkland Regional Library provided the Council with a presentation regarding the 
current activities and initiatives of Parkland Regional Library. 
 
 



                                                                                      
 
 

  

 

Lacombe, AB T4L 2N3 (Tel) 403.782.6601 (Fax) 403.782.3820 www.lacombecounty.com 

64 

 
STARS PRESENTATION 
Council was provided with a presentation highlighting the current services and operations of STARS. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Next Regular Council Meeting is 
October 24, 2024 – 9:00 a.m. 

 
Next Committee of the Whole Meeting is 

December 3, 2024 – 9:00 a.m. 
 

Lacombe County Administration Building 
**For more details from Lacombe County Council meetings, please refer to the meeting minutes. All 

meeting minutes are posted on the website (www.lacombecounty.com) after approval.  

 

 

 

http://www.lacombecounty.com/


 

 

Notice of application to be filed for approval 
of the natural gas distribution franchise 

agreement between the Town of Bentley and 
ATCO Gas and Pipelines Ltd. 

 
Application summary  
 
The Alberta Utilities Commission expects to receive an application from ATCO Gas and Pipelines 
Ltd. to approve the existing current and valid natural gas distribution franchise agreement with the 
Town of Bentley. This application for approval is required due to changes made by the Utilities 
Affordability Statutes Amendment Act, 2024, to various statutes governing franchise agreements. 
 
The current franchise agreement, which took effect in November of 2019, grants ATCO Gas and 
Pipelines Ltd. the exclusive right to deliver natural gas to the residents of Town of Bentley for 
approximately 15 years.  
 
No changes to the franchise agreement or to the franchise fee rate rider percentage are being made 
as part of this application. The franchise fee rate rider percentage will remain at its current rate, 
which is 12%. Including linear taxes, the resulting average monthly franchise fee for an average 
residential customer will remain the same at approximately $7.58. The franchise fee is calculated 
based on distribution charges. An average residential customer uses about 105 gigajoules per year. 
 
You may send your concerns about, objections to, or support for the application in writing to the 
Town of Bentley or to ATCO Gas and Pipelines Ltd. on or before November 8, 2024,  at: 
 

Town of Bentley, Marc Fortais (CAO), 4918 50th Ave, (403)-748-4044 
Email: mfortais@townofbentley.ca 
 
ATCO Gas and Pipelines Ltd., Attn: Franchise Agreement Coordinator, 5302 
Forand Street S.W. Calgary, Alberta, T3E 8B4, phone: 310-5678 or 1-888-511-
7550; email: franchisecoordinatorgas@atco.com 

 
Any submissions received, unless you request otherwise, will be part of the application submitted 
and will become part of the public record. 
 
For more information on franchises or to receive a copy of the franchise agreement please contact 
either the Town of Bentley or ATCO Gas and Pipelines Ltd. at the addresses listed above. 
 
For more information: 
 
For more information about the AUC or its approval process associated with franchise 
applications, please contact the AUC directly at 310-4AUC or at info@auc.ab.ca. 
 
The Alberta Utilities Commission is an independent, quasi-judicial regulatory body responsible 
for making decisions about utility-related applications.  
 
Issued on October 22, 2024 
 
 
Alberta Utilities Commission 

mailto:info@auc.ab.ca

	Agenda -October 22, 2024 - Regular Council Meeting.pdf
	October 22, 2024 - Regular Meeting of Council - Minutes October 8, 2024
	Cheque Listing 20240778 to 20240827
	New Business - Resident concern regarding herbacide application
	Attachment #1 - Data Sheet Nufarm - Trillion
	Attachment #2 - Resident Letter of Concern Herbacide Spraying
	New Business October 22, 2024 - Bylaw 251-2024 Bylaw to establish $500,000 Line of Credit for 3 years for operating costs
	Attachment #1 - Bylaw 192-2017 Bylaw to establish a line of credit of $500,000
	Attachment #2 - Bylaw 251-2024 - Bylaw to establish $500, 000 Line of Credit for 3 years for operating costs
	New Business - Effluent Access Agreement - Baytex Energy Ltd
	Attachment #1 - Monitoring Letter to Wastewater Facilities - Alberta Environment
	Correspondance - Lacombe County Council Highlights October 10, 2024
	Correspondance - Bentley - Bill 19 Notice Template - ATCO AUC Requirement Franchise Fee Advertisement

